
MINUTES 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
MARCH 1, 2012 
 
Mayor Jeff Thompson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Council members 
present were Dennis Zimmerman, Jean Soine, and Jeff Bertram. Gene Beavers was 
absent. Others present were Renee Eckerly, City Administrator; Jennifer Welling, 
Administrative Assistant; Stephanie Hormann, Cable Coordinator; Bill Spooner, City 
Attorney; Ellarry Prentice, Press; John Sanner, Stearns County Sheriff; Joe Schmitz, 
Stacy Schmitz, Bruce Elfering, Larry Alstead, John Kulzer, Charles Buggs, Tracy 
Kortlever, and Jerome Feigum.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  
 

Motion was made by Soine to approve the agenda.  Seconded by Bertram 
and unanimously carried.  

 
STEARNS COUNTY SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AGREEMENT 
 
Sheriff Sanner expressed that he is in attendance to discuss options and will do what 
the City wants and if needed to help for a period of time the County will be here without 
any fees.  Sanner stated he was not sure on what direction the Council wants to go.  
 
It was stated that at the last City Council meeting initial discussion took place regarding 
police coverage, transition, the position, services, etc. There is a concern with the 
reporting, clerical part of the department and the back log of such. It was asked how the 
County could help the City with these types of things during this transition.  
 
Sanner stated the following: 

1. The Council could promote one of the City’s full-time officers to take on 
the responsibilities of Chief until one is hired with the help of Stearns 
County.  

2. Stearns County could offer administrative support with an on duty 
sergeant or lieutenant. 

3. Create a hybrid of something in between.  
Anything the City chooses the County will support and is obligated to provide. Sanner 
presented the Agreement.  It is open ended intentionally so that either party can change 
or back out immediately. The bottom line is to provide a service to the citizens of 
Paynesville.  
 
Thompson asked if something like this had been done in any other community.  Sanner 
said no.  
 
Sanner reported on the possible pilot project for the County to provide transcription, 
dictation, and reporting support through borrowed County equipment.  Stearns County 
would type reports and statements at no additional cost to the City.  
 



It was stated that people are saying that the Council wants to eliminate the Police 
Department, but in reality the Council wants people to do their jobs.  
 
There was some discussion on how the Council found out Kortlever was leaving before 
his actual formal resignation. 
 
It was asked what does the Council want: 
 1. Replace the Chief 
 2. Create a Sergeant position 
 3. Have Stearns County do the clerical work 
 
Sanner stated that Stearns County has no intentions of taking over the Police 
Department but rather: 

• Provide options to preserve the department 
• Get through the transition 
• Help with hiring a new Chief 

 
The County is here to help in any capacity.  
 
It was asked what the County expects financially in return for short term. Sanner said to 
help for a few weeks there will be no charge.  
 
The Press was thanked for their coverage of the last Council meeting.  It is not the 
intent of the Council to eliminate the Police Department.  
 
Sanner further stated that the County wants to make sure the City doesn’t have to make 
a huge decision immediately and that the County will support the City in any way.  
 
There was discussion on the need for a Chief at 12:01 a.m. on March 4, 2012. The 
record keeping seems to be the biggest burden and that’s the area where the most help 
is needed.  
 
Sanner stated that if a senior position is appointed the County will help answer any 
questions.  
 
Eckerly reported on the call she received from Shannon Schroeder, AFSCME Union.  
 
Spooner interjected on moving an officer from the AFSCME to MAPE Union group and 
wages for such. There is also the option of appointing one of the officers as an Interim 
Chief.   
 
It was stated that the Council has not asked any of the officers if they want to be the 
Chief.  
 
Eckerly explained the policy on promoting within and the wages for such.  
 
It was stated that the Council doesn’t want to make a quick decision. The Council 
appreciated the clarity and help in looking for a short-term solution.  It is necessary to 
make sure the City has its bases covered and then determine what can be done.  



It was asked to hear from the officers. Joe Schmitz questioned the pilot project for data 
entry; how long would the County do it and at what cost. Sanner stated there would be a 
minimal fee down the road and no fee right away.  
 
Joe Schmitz further asked depending on who supervises the department; what/who’s 
policy would be used. Sanner stated that the Paynesville policies would be enforced.  
 
There was some discussion on what Waite Park did, potential costs, rank, and legal 
ramifications.  
 
Joe Schmitz stated that this is all uncharted water for the officers as well and it’s 
important to them to do a good job. It was stated that the Council has no agenda to 
move anyone out and the Council wants what’s best for the City and the department.  
 
Joe Schmitz offered to step up and be the interim Chief until one is hired. It was asked 
why the Council didn’t hear this before tonight.  Joe Schmitz stated that no one asked 
them or came to them. Chuck Buggs interjected that the officers were waiting for the 
Council to come to them. The department is self sufficient; there are two officers that 
have been here 15 plus years. It was asked who would have the officers expected to 
come.  Buggs said anyone; he was the last person to find out Kortlever was leaving.  
 
It was stated that it is hard to talk to employees about anything due to the unions.  
 
There was some discussion on options, solutions, the process and how to get this done 
correctly and quickly.  
 
It was stated that once Kortlever is done everything is on the table and the Council will 
look at all options. The Township is looking at their contract as well.   
 
It was stated that it was appreciated that the officers provided input and would hope that 
would continue.  
 
Thompson asked what the Council’s wishes are.  It was stated that it may be desirable 
to enter into an agreement with Stearns County until the best working arrangement is 
determined.  
 

Motion was made by Zimmerman to approve Resolution 2012-11 
Authorizing Execution Of Agreement as presented.   

 
Spooner interjected is this resolution really the agreement or will there be an agreement 
that outlines the deal. Sanner stated that he is not comfortable with making changes, 
but the City and County Attorneys could work together to come up with a workable 
agreement. Spooner expressed that the officers had some concerns and it would make 
sense to address some of them.  
 
 Motion seconded by Bertram.  
 



It was stated that the Sheriff will honor it and follow up with a letter of understanding to 
go with it. Spooner confirmed that the Resolution states the City will enter into an 
agreement.  
 
It was clarified to draft a letter of understanding outlining the discussion and concerns.  
 
It was suggested to receive periodic reports from the County.  
 
Eckerly reported that she did receive a list of things that need to be done and all major 
things from Kortlever and that he’d been working with Schmitz on this.    
 
It was stated that Eckerly’s information would have been beneficial before tonight.  
 
Soine stated that she is against the agreement as the Sheriff’s Department is already 
here to help. Sanner stated that the Agreement gives his department the authority to do 
such.  
 
Alstead expressed his sadness to hear of Kortlever’s leaving. He was an excellent Chief 
with the department of excellent officers. He had not heard that the Department may be 
disbanded. One major issue is who ever the first officer on the scene is the officer in 
charge. He suggested hiring someone else to do some of the paperwork.  
 
Sanner agreed; however, in a catastrophic emergency if any agency does not have the 
capabilities it will fall on the Sheriff’s Department and then BCA.  
 
Thompson stated that there is a motion and second on the floor.  
 

The motion passed 3:1 (Thompson, yes; Zimmerman, yes; Bertram, yes; 
and Soine, no). 

 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 
 

     
Renee Eckerly, City Administrator 

 


